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The Griffith-Franklin House, located a block from the Green River at a crucial 
bend, sits high with strategic views up and down the valley and across to the 
town of Rumsey. Two blocks from the Courthouse, it is on a pleasant 
wooded street lined with several of the relatively few older residences remain­ 
ing in Calhoun. As it appears today, the house remains much the same as 
when built. A sensitive recent renovation replaced deteriorating features with 
close facsimiles. The white-painted clapboard on the west side, for instance, 
repeats exactly the scale of the original on the three other sides. It is a 
frame, two-story structure, three bays in width, with the entrance on the 
southwestern end of the facade. There is a one-story portico across the front 
with three supporting columns, replacing an earlier smaller porch over the 
entrance. A concrete porch floor also replaces the older wooden one. (The present 
porch dates from before 1900, it is believed)
From the front entrance one enters into a hallway, to the right of which is the 
17'-square living room. Behind the living room through double doors is the 
dining room. To the rear is a one-story, ten-feet-wide addition running the 
length of the house and containing the kitchen and bath. The floors in the 
downstairs were laid at the turn of the century atop the old floors. They are 
of oak, ash, and pine with mitered corners and mitered patterns. There is 
a variety of doors in the downstairs--heavy hand-made doors of two longi­ 
tudinal panels, Christian doors, Colonial Frame doors, and doors with six 
horizontal panels. The stairway with its original treads leads to two upstairs 
rooms. The floors are original--wide poplar planks put down with square 
nails. The upstairs doors are batten made with square nails.

Other details of the interior include an original plain mantel in the living 
room flanked by built-in book cases of colonial architectural design.

The window facings in the house are all original. Exact reproductions of 
some of the window frames replace the old. A few of the tinted hand-blown 
panes remain.

A particular concern is that the street on which the Griffith-Franklin House 
is located, is threatened with incompatible development. It is hopeful that 
National Register designation will provide recognition and will support efforts 
to preserve its residential character.
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During the early days of the Civil War, the small western Kentucky town of 
Calhoun, with its population of approximately 500 people in a county of only 
a little over 6,000, rose suddenly to prominence with the influx of 10,000 
troops in late 1861. An unpretentious frame house on the corner of Second 
and Poplar Streets, the Griffith-Franklin House, was chosen as headquarters 
for the commander, Brigadier General Thomas L. Crittenden. It is from 
this association the building, known locally as "History House," derives 
its importance.

The town had been in existence only a few years (established in 1852) when 
war broke out. The State Legislature declared Kentucky neutral in the 
conflict, but it proved impossible to keep the war from its borders. 
Western Kentucky was particularly important in that both sides were 
concerned with the control of the Mississippi-Ohio Rivers. In September 
1861 Confederate troops occupied Hickman and Columbus on the Mississippi 
River and Bowling Green in south central Kentucky. Federal forces 
hesitated no longer. Generals Ulysses S. Grant and William T. Sherman 
engaged Leonidas Polk at Columbus and moved on to Paducah. Louisville, 
in the meantime, was made a Union headquarters town.

It is with this setting that the Seventeenth Kentucky Volunteer Infantry marched 
to Calhoun on the north bank of the Green River in November 1861 and 
there joined several other units under the command of Brigadier General 
Thomas Leonidas Crittenden (1819-1893), son of the Honorable John J. 
Crittenden,former U.S. Senator, Governor of Kentucky, and Attorney General 
under President Millard Fillmore. T. L. Crittenden had been engaged in 
organizing and training of troops in the Owensboro and Henderson area and 
moved to Calhoun to complete the organization of two Brigades (13th and 
14th) composed of regiments from Indiana, Ohio, and Kentucky. Including 
his division staff Crittenden was to have more than 10,000 men encamped 
in the Calhoun vicinity.

Even before Crittenden moved into Calhoun, the particular importance of the
Calhoun/Rumsey area was recognized, primarily for the fact that Lock No.
2 was situated at Rumsey, a small town across the Green River from Calhoun,

(continued)
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Griffith-Franklin House

The Franklin home selected for General Crittenden in Calhoun was spacious 
and the upper story, with its vantage point of view of the river's bend,was 
perfect for observations. Visible, no doubt, was the turmoil and chaos 
that the war had brought to the quiet river town, now a "city of tents," 
as well as hangings from the old two-story jail that stood just back of 
the old brick courthouse on a hill across from History House.

The house was constructed about 1854 by heirs of property owned by John 
Calhoun (1797-1842 ), Kentucky district lawyer, judge and congressman 
for whom the city was named. The house was soon after purchased by 
heirs of Remus Griffith. Remus' widow Sally and her son Henry sold it 
in 1857 to Sally's great-niece Adeline E. Hust. Two years later it was 
purchased by Mrs.' Hust's father, Mr. W. W. Franklin, owner during 
the Civil War.

The reason for Crittenden's presence in Calhoun and the assembling of 
the various units was, along with defense and protection, to build the 
regiments to regulation strength. Defense proved no great problem but 
the building of the regiments was most difficult. Weather and disease 
took their toll. Wrote historian John Blackburn:

"Tents and other much needed supplies were never acquired in sufficient 
amounts and the crude shelters available were little protection against the 
wintry blasts. It was reported that the temperature reached, in January, 
an unbelievable ninety-three degrees, but it also reached a typical eighteen 
degrees. Perhaps this wide range in the temperature was partly responsible 
but there were other reasons also for the many instances of colds, 
pneumonia and influenza that took such a toll in the ranks.

"At Calhoun there was an almost complete lack of proper sanitation 
measures enforced. Because of this a large number of the young soldiers 
died of digestive disease and infections. It is a sad fact indeed that 
more Civil War soldiers died of dysentery and diarrhea than were killed 
by enemy guns. In the years after the war groups of veterans gathered 
for discussions about the 'old days of the war,' and in these gatherings 
there was often heard loud laughter when some bearded veteran mentioned 
his trying experiences with the 'quickstep.' During the war though it 
was no laughing matter as it brought to an abrupt end many a young life." 
(pp. 28-29)
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Griffith-Franklin House

General Crittenden was, however, able to accomplish his mission of 
organizing what was afterwards known as the Fifth Division. On January 
17, 1862 he and his men were ordered to South Carrollton but on January 29 they 
were ordered back to Calhoun. On February 9, Crittenden was again 
ordered to break camp, this time told to move south to join other 
Federal forces which were driving Albert Sidney Johnston out of Bowling 
Green. A few months later, in April, Crittenden's troops were to 
participate in the engagement at Shiloh during which the Confederate 
hold on southern Kentucky and Tennessee was broken.

With the departure of Crittenden's division, from Calhoun, a replacement 
force was sent in to defend the city. But the days of the big units 
in Calhoun were definitely over.

Other owners or residents of History House included W. T. Owen, lawyer; 
George Prentiss, lawyer; James Madison Nichols; John Porter Hines, river 
boat captain and brother of Duncan Hines; E. B. McEwin, merchant; 
Henry McCein, lawyer and county attorney; J. L. Moore, pharmacist. 
In 1969 Dr. and Mrs. M. T. Richey bought the house from the heirs of J. 
L. Moore and began restoring it.

The Griffith-Franklin House, as headquarters for the commander of the 
Fifth Division, was a very real participant in the Civil War in Kentucky. 
According to local tradition, the building also served as an infirmary 
during the later stages of the War; a cemetery behind it is said to have 
served this hospital. As the oldest remaining residence on its original 
site in the city of Calhoun (the first house in the town was erected in 
1849), the structure has also been a witness to other scenes from its 
vantage point along the Green River--flat boats going down the river with 
early settlers, huge rafts of logs floating to saw mills, baptizings, ice 
making or cutting, ice skating, show boats, coal barges. This house has 
seen it all.
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